
 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING Amended 7/24/2023 
Monday, July 24, 2023 – 7:00PM                   
City Hall – 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 

7:00 PM Council Meeting (Action to be taken by Council on the following agenda items) 
Note:  Please be courteous and turn cell phones off during the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL (Excused Absences if Any) 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
        4A – Approval of the Regular Council Meeting Agenda for July 24, 2023. 
  
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

  
 5A – Approval of the Study Session Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting. 
 
 5B – Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting. 

                
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS BY MAYOR OR COUNCIL 

 
7. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES and SCHEDULING OF PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
10. WRITTEN PETITIONS & REPORTS FROM SPECIAL COMMITTEES   
 
 10A – Request from Wings of Hope. 
 
11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & CITY OFFICES 
 
 11A. City Boards, Commissions and Area Agencies 
 
  11A.1 – Downtown Development Authority July Meeting – Teresa Galloway 
 
  11A.2 – Public Spaces Commission July Meeting – Bill Morgan 
 
  11A.3 – Zoning Board of Appeals July 13th Meeting – Joel Dye 
                                         

11B. Finance Department  
 



 

 
 

11B.1 – Request to approve Accounts Payable and Payroll. 
     

11C. Public Safety 
  

 11C.1 – Request to declare the emergency siren located at 300 Monroe Street as surplus and discuss 
emergency siren coverage in the City of Allegan. 

 
11D. Water Utilities 

                 
11E. Public Works 
 

11E.1 – Request to authorize a transfer of FY2019 airport funds to the Coleman A. Young Airport in 
Detroit, Michigan. 

 
11E.2 – Request to authorize a purchase order for Riverworks Construction for repairs to the Riverfront 
Boardwalk in the amount of $87,610.00 and reject the low bid of TJM Services for bid inaccuracies. 

 
11F. City Manager & City Clerk 
 

11F.1 – Request to accept the June 2023 Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape Project Progress 
Report. 

 
11F.2 – Request to approve the proposed land division of Parcel# 03-51-200-004-00, located at 925 
River Street. 
 
11F.3 – Request to approve the proposed plat amendment of Parcel# 03-51-100-061-00 and -190-027-
00. 

 
11F.4 – Request to approve the FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Contract. 
 
11F.5 – Request to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign a three-year lease agreement with 
Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC. 

  
12. BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 

12A – Appointment of Sara Ramaker to the Historic District Commission with a term set to expire on 
December 31, 2026 

 
12B – Appointment of Marjori Cantwell to the Historic District Commission with a term set to expire on 
December 31, 2026 

 
13. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER, COUNCIL & MAYOR 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
PLEASE NOTE 



 

 
 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
In addition to addressing the Council during public hearings and under “Public Comment,” members of the 
audience may address the Council, on items listed under agenda numbers 11B-11F; please limit your comments 
to three minutes or less per item. Please step up to the Podium and state your name and address. 
 

The proposed process for items listed under agenda numbers 11B-11F above shall be as follows: 
 

1. Announcement of the agenda item by the Mayor. 
2. Verbal report provided by staff. 
3. Mayor asks councilmembers if they have any questions for staff to clarify the staff report. 
4. Mayor opens/closes the floor to receive public comment (if a public hearing is required or if the 

mayor determines public comments is warranted). 
5. Motion is made by a council member and seconded by another council member. 
6. Mayor then calls on councilmembers to discuss the motion if councilmembers wish to discuss. 
7. Mayor calls for a vote on the item after discussion has occurred. 



The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
  1 

 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES 

 Monday July 10, 2023, at 5:30 PM 
City Council Chamber – 231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, Michigan 
 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Galloway called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

2. Public Comment 

No comment given. 

3. Round Table Discussion amongst Council Members 

Councilmember Morgan discussed Allegan Township’s partnership with the Allegan County 

Sherrif’s department for code enforcement. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bird asked for an update regarding the downtown refuse program. 

Mayor Galloway inquired about a hole on the Riverfront and a 360° evaluation of the City 

Manager. 

4. Presentation by Lakeshore Advantage 

 

5. Discussion regarding Rental Inspection and Building Inspection Program 

Council discussed whether the city would benefit from switching to SAFEbuilt for rental 

inspection and building inspection services. 

6. Discussion regarding a Historic District Study Committee 

Council briefly discussed the formation of a HDC study committee but decided to hold off on 

major discussion until the July 24, 2023, regular Council meeting when Vice Chair Jason 

Ramaker will be available to participate in the discussion. 

7. Review of May Revenue and Expenditure Report 

 

8. Review of Council Agenda 



The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
  1 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bird inquired about the next phases of the Downtown Infrastructure and 

Streetscape project. 

Councilmember Andrus asked for an update about the construction of a hotel at 101 Brady 

Street. 

9. Adjournment 

Mayor Galloway adjourned the meeting at 6:47 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

1 7/10/2023 

 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 Monday July 10, 2023, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chamber – 231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, Michigan 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Galloway called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Andrus, Bird, Galloway, Morgan, Redding, Zeter 
 
Absent: Hanse 
 

Motion by Andrus with support from Bird to excuse Councilmember Hanse. Motion 
passed 6-0. 

 
Also Present: City Manager Joel Dye, Downtown Manager Parker Johnson, City Clerk 
Michaela Kleehammer, and Finance Director/Treasurer Tracy Stull. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 

 
4A – Approval of the Regular Council Meeting Agenda for July 10, 2023. 
 
Motion by Zeter with support from Andrus to approve the Regular Council Meeting Agenda 
for July 10, 2023, as amended. Motion passed 6-0. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes 

 
5A – Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes from June 26, 2023, Council Meeting. 
 
Motion by Bird with support from Andrus to approve the study session minutes from June 26, 
2023. Motion passed 6-0.  

 
6. Special Presentations & Recognition by Mayor or Council 

 
7. First Reading of Ordinances and Scheduling of Public Hearings 
 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

2 7/10/2023 

8. Public Hearings and Adoption of Ordinance 
 

9. Public Comment (7:02 – 7:16) 
 

• Ron Jones (217 Lincoln) 
• Zeb and Kim Flora (130 & 136 Park Ave) 
• Paul Wylie (643 Sherman) 
• Sara Ramaker (334 Marshall) 

 
10. Written Petitions & Reports from Special Committees 
 

11. Reports from Boards, Commissions & City Offices 
 

11A. City Boards, Commissions, and Area Agencies 
 
 11A.1 – Election Commission June 28th Meeting – Michaela Kleehammer 
 
 11A.2 – Historic District Commission July Meeting – Mike Zeter 
 
11B. Finance Department 
 
 11B.1 – Request to approve Accounts Payable and Payroll. 
 

Motion by Bird with support from Andrus to approve accounts payable and payroll. 
Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 11B.2 – Request to approve the annual auditing services contract with Siegfried Crandall. 
 

Motion by Morgan with support from Bird to approve the annual auditing services 
contract with Siegfried Crandall. Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 11B.3 – Request to approve the MERS Contribution Addendum and Agreement. 
 

Motion by Andrus with support from Bird to approve the MERS Contribution Addendum 
and Agreement. Motion passed 6-0. 

 
11C. Police Department 

 
11D. Water Utilities 

 
11E. Public Works  

 
11F. City Manager & City Clerk 
 

11F.1 – Request to adopt Resolution 23.24 to Redistrict Election Precincts. 
 
Motion by Andrus with support from Morgan to adopt Resolution 23.24. Motion passed 
6-0. 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

3 7/10/2023 

 
12. Board Appointments 
 

13. Communications from City Manager, Council & Mayor 
 

City Manager Dye discussed positive comments he received on Friday about Allegan and 
Rollin’ on the River. 
 
Councilmember Morgan asked whether portable carports are permitted in the city.  
 
Councilmember Redding asked about a conflict of interest that would prevent Sara Ramaker 
from serving on the Historic District Commission. Redding also asked about the issues 
brought by Ron Jones and Zeb & Kim Flora during public comment. 

 
Mayor Galloway asked City Manager Dye about plans for the next wayfinding meeting. 
Galloway also extended thoughts and prayers to those affected by the fireworks incident at 
July 3 Jubilee. 

 
14. Closed Session 
 

15. Adjournment 
 
Mayor Galloway adjourned the meeting at 7:43 PM. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 





 
City of Allegan 
Downtown Development Authority Meeting 
City of Allegan Council Chambers 
231 Trowbridge Street  
 
July 12, 2023 

1. Call to Order 
 
Meeting was called to order at 8:00am.  
 

2. Attendance  

Present: Chair Mark Heather, Vice Chair Michelle Liggett (8:04am), Mayor Teresa Galloway, 
Carleigh Ackerman, Carl Canales, Nicole Heslip, Kelly McLean, Phil Siegler, Steve Tibbitts  
 
Absent: 
 
Others Present: Parker Johnson, Downtown Manager and Assistant to the City Manager 

 Joel Dye, City Manager  

3. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes  

Motion to approve the minutes from June 14, 2023, by Galloway, supported by Heslip. 
Motion carried 8-0.  

4. Public Comment 

None 

5. Discussion Items  

a. Downtown Allegan Improvement Project Update 

Johnson gave an update regarding the Downtown Improvement Project. The update 
included the weekly updates from the contractor. General discussion was had.  

 
 
 
 



b. Wayfinding Signage 

Johnson gave an update regarding the wayfinding signage project including dates 
for upcoming site visits and follow up meetings. Heslip continues to serve as a 
representative of the DDA on the Wayfinding Signage Steering Committee. 

c. Downtown Snow Removal 

Johnson discussed sidewalk snow removal in the core downtown area. The 
Department of Public Works received no bids for the work this upcoming season. 
Board members agreed that the removal of snow was important, especially 
considering the improvements to the area and directed city staff to find a solution 
to continue the service. 

Ackerman requested that the public sidewalk along Country House Furniture be 
added to the removal map, as well as a recommendation to add the public sidewalk 
along the Regent Theatre. 

The discussion also included snow piling locations during downtown road clearing. 
The DDA’s recommendations will be shared with DPW staff. 

6. Comments from City Staff & Board Members  
 

a. Heather asked for an update on the 101 Brady Street project and Dye provided. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:37am.  

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Parker Johnson 
Downtown Manager & Assistant to the City Manager  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 



Amended 7/24/2023 

 
CITY OF ALLEGAN 

PUBLIC SPACES COMMISSION 
 

City of Allegan City Hall 
231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan MI 49010 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023 6:30pm 
 

MINUTES 

      1. Call to Order  
      Meeting was called to order at 6:31pm 
 
      2. Attendance  

Present: Chair Judi McCall, Vice Chair Paula Mintek, Carl Canales,  Bill Morgan, Korree 
Johnson, Cyndi Reed, Peter Savage, Eddie Quiñones-Walker 

 
      Absent: 
 
      Others Present: Joel Dye, City Manager 
                               Parker Johnson, Downtown Manager & Assistant to the City Manager 
         Jeff Morrie, Assistant Director of the Department of Public Works 
 
      3. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes  

 
Motion by Peter, supported by Carl, to approve the minutes from June 14, 2023. Motion 
carried 7-0. Cyndi abstained.  

4. Public Comment 
 

5. Parks & Recreation 

a. Water Street Boardwalk Community Clean-Up 
i. The condition of the Water Street Boardwalk is overgrown and in need of 

maintenance before the winter season. A community clean-up effort was proposed, 
and a formal recommendation was made by Paula, supported by Eddie, to set the 
date for Friday, September 22, 2023. Motion passed 8-0. 

b. Other Comment 
i. City staff will present an initial draft of the City of Allegan Parks Master Plan at 

the August Public Spaces Commission meeting. 



Amended 7/24/2023 

 

 

 
6. Oakwood Cemetery  

a. Other Comments  
i. Peter gave an update on the Friends of the Oakwood Cemetery. 

ii. Peter also inquired about the repairs to the brick pillars at the Arbor Street 
entrance. 
 

      b. Other Comments  

7. Trees 

a. Riverfront Park 

i. Jeff Morrie shared plans to plant four new Marmo Maple trees along the 
Riverfront Park where four trees were removed in recent years. 

b. Other Comments 

i. Carl reported the dead tree in the public right-of-way in front of 108 Chestnut 
Street, also known as Beach Paradise Tanning and Tiki Kut Hair Salon. 

8. Downtown Allegan Improvement Project 

      a. Street Furniture 

i. P. Johnson shared furniture color selections. 

      b. Tree Donor Programs 

 i. Dye shared plans to start a tree donor program at the request of two residents. 

c. Other Comment 

 i. The board discussed recycling as part of the improvement project. 

 

 

 



Amended 7/24/2023 

9. Other Discussion Items 

      a. Wayfinding Signage 

     i. P. Johnson gave an update regarding the wayfinding signage project including dates for 
upcoming site visits and follow up meetings. Korree continues to serve as a representative of 
the Public Spaces Commission on the Wayfinding Signage Steering Committee. 

      b. Girl Scout Property – August Tour 

     i. The Public Spaces Commission will meet at the Girl Scout Property for a site visit at their 
August meeting. 

      c. Other Comment 

     i. Eddie shared his desire to see more representation of Native American history reflected 
in City of Allegan Parks. 

10. Comments from City Staff & Board Members 
 

11. Adjournment  
Meeting was adjourned at 7:46pm.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Parker Johnson 
Downtown Manager & Assistant to the City Manager  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
           

City of Allegan 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Allegan City Hall 231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan MI   49010 
 
 

Minutes 
 

 Thursday, July 13, 2023 – 5:00 pm  
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Jon Cook called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 

2. Attendance 
 

Members Present: Jon Cook, Kurt Hatfield, and Jason Watts 
Members Absent: Rachel McKenzie and Tim Perrigo 
 
Motion by Jason Watts, supported by Jon Cook to excuse the absences of Rachel 
McKenzie and Tim Perrigo.  Motion Carried 3-0.  
 

3. Business Meeting 
 

i. Election of Chair for 2023 
 

Motion by Jason Watts, supported by Kurt Hatfield to appoint Jon Cook as 
Chairperson for 2023.  

 
ii. Election of Vice Chair for 2023 

 
Motion by Kurt Hatfield, supported by Jon Cook to appoint Jason Watts as 
Vice Chairperson for 2023.  

 
4. Approval of the Agenda for July 13, 2023 

Motion by Jason Watts, supported by Jon Cook to approve the agenda.  
Motion Carried 3-0.  

 
5.  Application 
 

a. 127 Robinson Street – Reduced Front Yard Setback for a Porch Addition 
 
Jon Cook introduced the application and opened the public hearing.  
 
Jessica Green, serving as the contractor for the project, gave an overview of the project, 
noting that the home is on a shallow lot and the only way to get a front porch is to 
encroach into the front yard.  
 

 



There being no more comment, the public hearing was closed.   
 
Motion by Jason Watts, supported by Kurt Hatfield approve the front yard setback 
variance as presented.  Motion Carried 3-0.  
 

4. Other Business 
None 

 
6.  Adjournment 
 

Jon Cook adjourned the meeting at 5:10 PM. 
 
 
The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan MI 49010 

The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer 



City of Allegan 
Finance Department  

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Allegan City Council 
FROM: Carol Canales, Finance Clerk 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager  
DATE: July 24th, 2023 

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll 

 
 

Action Requested: 
It is requested that City Council approve accounts payable in the amount of $1,431,747.66 and 
payroll in the amount of $147,901.65 for a total disbursement of $1,579,649.31. 

 
Background: 
Attached is the Disbursement Report highlighting the accounts payable by fund as well as listing 
the individual payments to the vendors paid through July 24th, 2023. 

 
 

Attachment(s): 
Disbursement Report 



General Fund 314,488.32$             
Major Streets 88,636.56$                
Local Streets 207,657.54$             

Grants 2,840.00$                  
DDA -$                            

PA 14,234.36$                
Sewer 219,346.21$             
Water 574,970.83$             

Motor Vehicle Pool 8,867.16$                  
Trust  & Agency 706.68$                     

Total A/P by Fund 1,431,747.66$          

Regular Check Run 1,065,622.27$          
ACH/EFT/Wires 152,518.67$             
Off-Cycle Check Runs 213,606.72$             
Total Checks 1,431,747.66$          

Payroll Check Remittances 993.59$                     
Payroll EFT Remittances 69,202.58$                
Total Remittances 70,196.17$               
Payroll - July 17th (for WE 07/16/2023) 77,705.48$                
Total Payroll 147,901.65$             

Total Disbursements 1,579,649.31$          

Disbursement Report
July 24, 2023

Accounts Payable by Fund
July 11th through July 24th, 2023



Ck# Vendor Description Amount Date
6241 ALLEGAN AREA EDU SER AGENCTaxes 32.86$                07/06/23
6242 ALLEGAN DISTRICT LIBRARY Taxes 25.24$                07/06/23
6243 Guide Studio, Inc. Wayfinding Program 5,550.00$           07/12/23
6244 TRI-STATE THEATRE SERVICE, INFilm 140.00$              07/12/23
6245 WALT DISNEY STUDIOS Film 664.67$              07/12/23
6246 CARTER CONSULTING LLC Admin Services - 119 Locust Rehab 1,980.00$           07/12/23
6247 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLStatement - May 2023 2,068.77$           07/12/23
6248 ALLEGAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS Taxes 526.08$              07/12/23
6249 ALLEGAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS Taxes 122.50$              07/12/23
6250 BERENDS HENDRICKS STUIT INS  Policy Renewals 200,148.35$      07/12/23
6251 CITY OF ALLEGAN Taxes 219.97$              07/12/23
6252 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE Quarterly Contribution 15.47$                07/13/23
6276 ANDY'S ACE HARDWARE Statement - May 2023 1,252.81$           07/17/23
6277 CARTER CONSULTING LLC Admin Services - 119 Locust Rehab 860.00$              07/17/23

Total Manual Checks 213,606.72$      

Ck# Vendor Description Amount  Date
6274 MISDU Child Support 860.96$              07/17/23
6275 HOLLAND COMMUNITY HOSPITWage Garnishments 132.63$              07/17/23

Total Payroll Checks **Included in Payroll Total 993.59$              

EFT# Vendor Description Amount  Date
EFT 1045 JOHN HANCOCK Retirement - 457/Loan 3,509.10$           07/17/23
EFT 1046 FEDERAL TAX DEPOSIT Federal Taxes 57,148.98$        07/17/23
EFT 1047 MERS DC Retirement - PD 321.26$              07/17/23
EFT 1048 JOHN HANCOCK Retirement - MPP 8,223.24$           07/17/23

Total Payroll EFT Payments 69,202.58$        

Total Manual Checks 283,802.89$      

7/24/2023

Off Cycle Check Runs

Payroll Remittance Checks Report

EFT Payroll Payment Report



Check 
Date Ck# Vendor Name Description  n 

7/6/2023 3312 OPTUM 2023 HSA Contributions 103,500.00$  
7/6/2023 3313 OPTUM 2023 Bonus HSA Contributions 39,576.80$    
7/6/2023 3314 OPTUM VOIDED (233.33)$         
7/6/2023 3315 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 3117 - STREET LIGHTS 3,946.84$       
7/6/2023 3316 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 8350 - 49010 LED LIGHT ROAD 1,930.59$       
7/6/2023 3317 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 3208 - STREET LIGHTS 60.15$            
7/6/2023 3318 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 3356 - TRAFFIC LIGHTS 51.77$            
7/6/2023 3319 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 3370 - 321 WATER ST 34.44$            
7/6/2023 3320 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 4732 - 1451 29TH ST L4 LIGHT 18.23$            
7/6/2023 3321 CONSUMERS ENERGY JUNE 2023 - 0836 - 49010 SIREN RD 5.79$               
7/6/2023 3322 WEX June Statement 530.77$          

7/11/2023 3323 INVOICE CLOUD Monthly Fees 178.85$          
7/11/2023 3324 OPTUM Monthly Fees 68.75$            
7/10/2023 3325 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HO  Internet 1,644.57$       
7/20/2023 3326 STATE OF MICHIGAN Sales Tax - June 2023 971.12$          

Total EFT Payments: 15 152,518.67$  

Check Register - EFT
7/24/2023



Check 
Date

Check 
# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

# 
Invoices

7/14/2023 6253 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Supplies 473.19$            3
7/14/2023 6254 AUTO-WARES GROUP Auto Parts/Supplies 151.06$            4
7/14/2023 6255 BROKEN ARROW RECYCLING LLC Dumpster Rental - June 2023 1,750.00$         1
7/14/2023 6256 DELUXE ECHOSTAR LLC Film 160.00$            4
7/14/2023 6257 DISABILITY NETWORK/LAKESHORE Letter of Support 240.00$            1
7/14/2023 6258 FAMILY FARM AND HOME Parts/Supplies 377.86$            3
7/14/2023 6259 FIRST ADVANTAGE LNS OCC. HEALTH SO Employee Physicals 164.76$            1
7/14/2023 6260 GALLAGHER INDUSTRIAL LAUNDRY INC Uniforms 294.17$            1
7/14/2023 6261 GRANITE GUARD LLC Elevator Phones 1,646.26$         3
7/14/2023 6262 MITEL Phones 1,653.83$         1
7/14/2023 6263 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF ALLEGAN Auto Parts/Supplies 165.08$            3
7/14/2023 6264 NORTHWEST KENT MECHANICAL CO Service Call 6,331.83$         1
7/14/2023 6265 PURITY CYLINDER GASES, INC. Gasses 368.00$            1
7/14/2023 6266 SHORELINE TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS Licensing 619.20$            1
7/14/2023 6267 STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS CORP Wastewater Program 1,711.49$         1
7/14/2023 6268 STATE OF MICHIGAN SOR Registration 30.00$              1
7/14/2023 6269 STEENSMA LAWN & POWER EQUIP Parts/Supplies 237.23$            2
7/14/2023 6270 WAANDERS CONCRETE CO. Fill Sand 484.11$            1
7/14/2023 6271 WALT DISNEY STUDIOS Film 1,448.37$         1
7/14/2023 6272 WARNER BROTHERS Film 100.00$            1
7/14/2023 6273 WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED Water Solutions 4,390.00$         1
7/20/2023 6278 1ST AYD CORPORATION Cleaner 176.34$            1
7/20/2023 6279 ACCURATE CLEANING SERVICE, LLC Cleaning Services - June 2023 1,125.00$         1
7/20/2023 6280 ALLEGAN RENTALS INC Parts/Supplies 26.99$              1
7/20/2023 6281 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Supplies 1,140.32$         3
7/20/2023 6282 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC. Membership Dues 87.00$              1
7/20/2023 6283 ASCENSION BORGESS HOSPITAL Employee Physicals 88.00$              1
7/20/2023 6284 BLACK GOLD HOLDINGS Asphalt 136.68$            1
7/20/2023 6285 BRAVE INDUSTRIAL FASTENERS, INC. Parts/Supplies 460.20$            1
7/20/2023 6286 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES INC Grave Markers 299.92$            1
7/20/2023 6287 CRONK SERVICES, LLC Cemetery Mowing 7,200.00$         1
7/20/2023 6288 DELUXE ECHOSTAR LLC Film 40.00$              1
7/20/2023 6289 DESIGN MANUFACTURING LLC Signs 41.64$              1
7/20/2023 6290 ECONO SIGN & BARRICADE LLC Signs 680.02$            1
7/20/2023 6291 ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY Curb Stop/Meter Setter 4,615.00$         2
7/20/2023 6292 FAMILY FARM AND HOME Parts/Supplies 10.99$              1
7/20/2023 6293 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF MICHI Phones 162.59$            2
7/20/2023 6294 GALLAGHER INDUSTRIAL LAUNDRY INC Uniforms 278.46$            1
7/20/2023 6295 GALLS, LLC Belt 14.28$              1
7/20/2023 6296 GLOBAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING Testing 350.00$            1
7/20/2023 6297 GRAND RAPIDS POPCORN, LLC Regent Concessions 950.00$            1
7/20/2023 6298 HAVILAND PRODUCTS COMPANY Lab Supplies 2,824.50$         7
7/20/2023 6299 JAMIE VAN SLYKE Riverfront Restroom Cleaning 330.00$            1
7/20/2023 6300 JASON CARNS Employee Reimbursement - Work Boots 150.00$            1
7/20/2023 6301 JAY GIBSON Employee Reimbursement - Travel Expenses 327.49$            1
7/20/2023 6302 JOEL DYE Employee Reimbursement - Travel Expenses 53.57$              1
7/20/2023 6303 LAURIE COURTNEY Employee Reimbursement - Work Boots 133.11$            1
7/20/2023 6304 LEGG LUMBER - ALLEGAN Pineboard/Plywood 143.96$            2
7/20/2023 6305 LOCK MASTER SECURITY LLC Repair/Cloud Access Control Service 330.50$            2
7/20/2023 6306 MILBOCKER & SONS INC Projects 994,829.69$     2
7/20/2023 6307 MWEA Membership Dues 95.00$              1
7/20/2023 6308 NORTH CENTRAL LABS Lab Supplies 1,129.46$         1
7/20/2023 6309 NORTHWEST KENT MECHANICAL CO Service Call 870.45$            1
7/20/2023 6310 PLUMBER'S PORTABLE TOILETS Portable Toilet Rental 1,025.00$         2
7/20/2023 6311 POWERPLAN-JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Leaf Vac Engine 2,680.57$         1
7/20/2023 6312 ROBERT L GALLOWAY Chain Link Materials 131.00$            1
7/20/2023 6313 SIEGFRIED CRANDALL PC Professional Services - June 2023 375.00$            1
7/20/2023 6314 SNAP ON TOOLS Tools 130.00$            1
7/20/2023 6315 SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS Regent Concessions 1,161.16$         1
7/20/2023 6316 THE SAFETY COMPANY LLC DBA MTECH Transmitter & Receiver 4,175.28$         1

Check Register
7/24/2023



Check 
Date

Check 
# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

# 
Invoices

Check Register
7/24/2023

7/20/2023 6317 TOWNSHIP OF ALLEGAN Township Debt 3,665.58$         1
7/20/2023 6318 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES INC Testing 663.00$            3
7/20/2023 6319 UNITED WHOLESALE GROCERY Regent Concessions 1,722.34$         3
7/20/2023 6320 USABLUEBOOK Parts/Supplies 671.27$            1
7/20/2023 6321 VC3 INC Laptop 3,056.00$         1
7/20/2023 6322 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLC Cell Phone Statement - June 2023 2,687.48$         1
7/20/2023 6323 VISTAR Regent Concessions 695.66$            1
7/20/2023 6324 WEST OLIVE NURSERY INC. Plants & Trees 685.00$            1
7/20/2023 6325 WYOMING ASPHALT PAVING CO INC Asphalt 200.33$            1

Total Checks: 69 1,065,622.27$    102



City of Allegan 
269.673.5511 

231 Trowbridge Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: N/A 
DATE:   July 24, 2023 
SUBJECT: Discussion regarding the emergency siren at 300 Monroe Street 
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council declare the emergency siren located at 300 Monroe Street as 
surplus, donate it to the Allegan Fire District, and then discuss emergency siren coverage in the 
City of Allegan.   
 
Background:  
There are currently four emergency sirens spread throughout the City of Allegan.  These sirens 
are activated through the Allegan County Emergency Management System.   
 
One of these sirens is located on the roof at the Allegan Fire Station (300 Monroe Street).  This 
siren is being removed as part of a roof replacement project. The siren will not be reinstalled due 
to concerns about damaging the new roof as well as due to the age and reduced life expectancy 
of the current siren.  Upon removing this siren, the city will only have three emergency sirens 
within the city limits.  However, over 99% of the city will still be covered. Please see the 
attached coverage map.   
 
West Shore Services, Inc. has submitted 3 quotes of possible reinstallations.  (This price does not 
include electrician costing for connecting electrical to new location.) 

• Reinstall the old siren with new mounting parts and a pole in a city agreed 
location:  $8,800 

• Purchase and install in a location chose by the city, a refurbished modern siren with 
mounting parts:   $17,600 

• Purchase and install in a location chose by the city, a new siren with all mounting 
parts:   $27,200 

• Do nothing, $0  
 

The City Council will have to decide if it is okay with the coverage as shown on the attached 
map. If the City Council is not comfortable with the coverage, then staff in coordination with the 
Fire District will analyze the siren type and placement and come back with the recommendation 
for the new placement for this siren.  
 
Attachment(s):  
Siren Coverage Map with three emergency sirens 
West Shore Services, Inc Proposal 

























City of Allegan 
   Department of Public Works 

691Airway Drive, Allegan, MI 49010 
Phone: 269.686.1115 

 

The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider. 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Allegan City Council 
FROM:    Doug Kadzban, Director of Public Works 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:    July 17, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:      Authorization to transfer Airport Funds to Coleman A. Young 
Municipal Airport (DET) 
 
Action Requested:  
That the City Council authorizes Mayor Galloway to sign the attached document 
transferring FY19 airport funding to the Coleman A. Young airport in Detroit. 
 
Background:  MDOT – AERO recently contacted the city notifying that they recommend 
we transfer our remaining FY 19 funds of $104,000 to another airport in Michigan that 
can use these funds by their expiration date of 09/23/2023.  The inability to use the FY19 
funds relates to the provisional airport license we operated under recently. 
   
MDOT is asking that we transfer the funds to Coleman A. Young (DET) airport.  
Deadline for this transfer is July 31, 2023.  Mayor needs to sign the Certification of 
Transferring Sponsor (attached), which then needs to be emailed to our city attorney for 
witnessing before returning it by email to MDOT before the deadline. 
 
Staff recommends transferring these FY2019 funds.   
                                                 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Request for FAA Approval of Agreement for Transfer of Entitlements 
  Certification of Transferring Sponsor 
   



FAA Form 5100-110 (8/20) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 1 of 2 

U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Aviation Administration 

OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
EXPIRATION DATE: 6/30/2023 

Request for FAA Approval of Agreement for Transfer of Entitlements 

) 

In accordance with 49 USC § 47117(c)(2),  

Name of Transferring Sponsor:  

hereby waives receipt of the following amount of funds apportioned to it under 49 USC § 47114(c) for 

the: Name of Transferring Airport (and LOCID):  ( 

for each fiscal year listed below: 

Entitlement Type 
(Passenger, Cargo or 

Nonprimary) 
Fiscal Year Amount 

Total N/A 

The Federal Aviation Administration has determined that the waived amount will be made available to: 

Name of Airport (and LOCID) Receiving Transferred Entitlements: 
( ) 

Name of Receiving Airport’s Sponsor: 

a public use airport in the same state or geographical areas as the transferring airport for eligible projects 
under 49 USC § 47104(a). 

The waiver expires on the earlier of   (date) or when the availability of 
apportioned funds lapses under 49 USC § 47117(b). 

For the United States of America, Federal Aviation Administration: 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 



FAA Form 5100-110 (8/20) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Transferring Sponsor 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 
willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 
Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Executed on this  day of  , 

Name of Sponsor: 

Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: 

Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: 

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: 

Certificate of Transferring Sponsor’s Attorney 

I,  , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify 
that in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Agreement under the laws of the 
state of  . Further, I have examined the foregoing Agreement 
and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative has been duly authorized and 
that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said 
state and 49 USC § 47101, et seq. 

Dated at (City, State), 

this  day of , 

Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney: ________________________________________________________ 



City of Allegan 
   Department of Public Works 

691Airway Drive, Allegan, MI 49010 
Phone: 269.686.1115 

 

The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider. 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Allegan City Council 
FROM:    Doug Kadzban, Director of Public Works 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:    July 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:      Riverfront Boardwalk Repair Project 
 
Action Requested:   
 
That the City Council approve a purchase order for Riverworks Construction in the 
amount of $87,610.00 for repairs to the Riverfront Boardwalk and reject the low bid of 
TJM Services for bid inaccuracies.    
 
Background:   
 
In 2022 the City Council directed staff to evaluate riverfront boardwalk. During this 
evaluation it was determined that part of the boardwalk between Hanson Park and the 
Veteran’s Monument needed to be repaired.   
 
The city contracted with Abonmarche to develop engineering bids for this repair and set 
aside $100,000 to conduct this repair.  DPW staff advertised and received bids for the repair 
to this portion of the Riverfront Boardwalk.   
 
Three (3) bids were received by the City Clerk’s office on June 21, 2023, and were opened 
by the city clerk with two bidders present.  Abonmarche checked the bids for completeness 
and accuracy and provided their recommendation (attached). 
                                                 
Attachments:   
Abonmarche Recommendation Letter 
Purchase Order 



 

  

July 7, 2023 

 

Mr. Doug Kadzban – Public Works Director 

City of Allegan 

691 Airway Drive 

Allegan, MI 49010 

 

Re: Recommendation for Contract Award  

Structural Repairs to Riverfront Boardwalk 

 

Mr. Kadzban, 

 

On June 21, 2023, three (3) bids were received for the Structural Repairs to the Riverfront Boardwalk 

in Allegan, MI. Per your request, Abonmarche checked the bids for completeness and accuracy. A 

summary of the bid tabulation is provided below: 

 

Bid Summary 

Bidder Bid Bond Bid 

Engineer’s Estimate - $73,139.00 

TJM Services LLC 

(Allegan, MI) 
✓ $71,409.00 

Riverworks Construction 

(Holland, MI) 
✓ $87,610.00 

Milbocker & Sons, Inc. 

(Allegan, MI) 
✓ $117,029.00 

 

The low bid was submitted by TJM Services LLC of Allegan, MI. Their bid appears to have 

qualifications on possible joist repair work that does not meet the specifications of the bid documents 

and plans (reinforcing vs replacement of joists and no connection to deck boards installed from 

above boardwalk as specified on plans).  Therefore, we recommend that the next low bid be chosen 

for award.  Riverworks Construction of Holland, MI is the next low bid, which appears to meet the 

requirements of the bid plans.  Abonmarche recommends award of the contract to Riverworks 

Construction in the amount of $87,610.00.  

 

If you have any questions or comments on our recommendation, please feel free to contact me. 

 

Sincerely,  

ABONMARCHE 

 
Scott Leblang, PE 

Senior Project Engineer 

 



Riverworks Construction's bid is well within the $100,000 that was budgeted for this project as part
of the FY2024 budget.

Bidder Name Bid Amount

Date

Date

CM/Council Approval:

Finance Approval:

Date

Summary of All Bids Received

Notes:

Requested By:

Contract/Job #:

87,610.00Total:

87,610.0087,610.00101-751-979001

AmountUnit PriceGL NumberDescriptionQty.

Req. Description: Structural Repairs to the Riverfront Boardwalk

Holland, MI  49423

5776 143rd AveAddress

Riverworks Construction
Preferred Vendor 547892dkadzbanRequested By

Requested Date

101Department

07/20/2023

24-0721Purchase Requisition No

Purchase Requisition
07/20/2023

City of Allegan

231 Trowbridge Street

Allegan, MI 49010

(269) 673-5511

(269) 686-5139



City of Allegan 
City Manager’s Office 

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: N/A 
DATE:   July 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape Project Progress Report   
  
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council accept the June 2023 Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape 
Project Progress Report.  
 
Background:  
Each month the City Council receives a report on the Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape 
Project.  This typically occurs at the first meeting of the month and covers the work that was done 
the month before.  However, even though the report was done for your July 10, 2023, meeting, it 
was inadvertently not put in the packet.   
 
Attached is the report for June 2023.   
 
Attachment(s):  
June 2023 Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape Project Progress Report 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Downtown Infrastructure & Streetscape Project 
Progress Report 

Monthly Update – June 2023 



 

 Project Scope 

 

The Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape Project is a capital improvement project being conducted by the City of Allegan 
to completely replace all underground utilities, streets, sidewalks, landscaping, streetlights, and other pedestrian amenities along 
Hubbard Street, Brady Street, and Locust Street in Downtown Allegan.   This includes the creation of a public plaza the east 
end of Trowbridge Street between Locust Street and Water Street. 



 

Project Schedule – This schedule is 
dependent on weather and material availability.  

Work Duration Estimated 
Start Date

Estimated 
End Date

Storm Sewer 6 Days 1-May-23 8-May-23
Test Watermain 4 Days 1-May-23 4-May-23
State Street /Perrigo Watermain Tie In 1 Day 5-May-23 5-May-23
Tie Ins/Water Services 5 Days 8-May-23 12-May-23
Excavate/Place Aggregate 5 Days 15-May-23 19-May-23
Curb and Gutter 3 Days 22-May-23 24-May-23
Electrical Underground 7 Days 25-May-23 2-Jun-23
Sidewalk/Drives 7 Days 5-Jun-23 13-Jun-23
HMA Leveling 3 Days 14-Jun-23 16-Jun-23
Restoration 3 Days 19-Jun-23 21-Jun-23

Sanitary 6 Days 9-May-23 16-May-23
Watermain 4 Days 15-May-23 18-May-23
Storm Sewer 6 Days 23-May-23 30-May-23
Excavate/Place Aggregate 5 Days 31-May-23 6-Jun-23
Curb and Gutter 3 Days 7-Jun-23 9-Jun-23
Electrical 7 Days 12-Jun-23 20-Jun-23
Sidewalk/Drives 7 Days 21-Jun-23 29-Jun-23
HMA Leveling 3 Days 30-Jun-23 4-Jul-23
Restoration 3 Days 5-Jul-23 7-Jul-23

Brady Street

East Hubbard Street (Locust Street to Water Street)

Work Duration Estimated 
Start Date

Estimated 
End Date

Sanitary 4 Days 17-May-23 22-May-23
Watermain 6 Days 19-May-23 26-May-23
Test Watermain (East and West Hubbard) 3 Days 29-May-23 31-May-23
Storm Sewer (Chestnut to to Locust) 5 Days 31-May-23 6-Jun-23
Water Services (East and West) 12 Days 1-Jun-23 16-Jun-23
Riverfront Sanitary to West 16 Days 19-Jun-23 10-Jul-23
Storm Sewer (West of Chestnut) 4 Days 11-Jul-23 14-Jul-23
Excavate/Place Aggregate 8 Days 17-Jul-23 26-Jul-23
Curb and Gutter 4 Days 27-Jul-23 1-Aug-23
Electrical 10 Days 2-Aug-23 15-Aug-23
Sidewalk/Drives/Brick 13 Days 16-Aug-23 1-Sep-23
HMA Leveling 3 Days 4-Sep-23 6-Sep-23
Restoration 4 Days 7-Sep-23 12-Sep-23

Trowbridge Sanitary 3 Days 17-Jul-23 19-Jul-23
Watermain 5 Days 20-Jul-23 26-Jul-23
Test Watermain 4 Days 27-Jul-23 1-Aug-23
Storm Sewer 7 Days 27-Jul-23 4-Aug-23
Water Services 8 Days 2-Aug-23 11-Aug-23
Basment Abandoments 15 Days 7-Aug-23 25-Aug-23
Excavate/Place Aggregate 8 Days 28-Aug-23 6-Sep-23
Curb and Gutter 5 Days 7-Sep-23 13-Sep-23
Seat Wall Concete 7 Days 14-Sep-23 22-Sep-23
Electrical 12 Days 14-Sep-23 29-Sep-23
Sidewalk/Drives/Brick 15 Days 2-Oct-23 20-Oct-23
HMA Leveling 3 Days 23-Oct-23 25-Oct-23
HMA Top Course (Whole Project) 7 Days 26-Oct-23 3-Nov-23
Clean Up/Landscaping (Whole Project) 8 Days 6-Nov-23 15-Nov-23

West  Hubbard Street (Locust Street to Chestnut Street)

Locust and Trowbridge Streets



 

Project Progress   
 

 

Work completed during prior month. 

• Work continued on Brady Street, Hubbard Street and along the Riverfront – Curbs have been installed on Brady and Hubbard (Water Street to 
Chestnut).  

• Staff purchased tables, chairs, and benches; we were able to secure a 5% discount on our purchase.  

• A different light pole and post top lantern were selected for the lights; this pole and post top lantern was reviewed the by the DDA, Public Spaces 
and City Council.  

 
Work planned for upcoming month. 

• Sidewalk removal and replacement and base course asphalt will be installed on Brady and Hubbard Street.  

• Conduit will be installed along Brady and Hubbard Street.  

• State Street and the 2nd Street Bridge will be open once the guardrail is installed.  

• Riverfront Sewer work will continue.   

• Work will begin on Locust Street.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE:  All work is weather dependent and relies on various material vendors 



 
 

 

Items of Note   
 

 

Following are items of note or unplanned issues the project team is working to address or 
actively tracking: 

•   Staff is finalizing the decision on which type of removeable bollards will be installed at the entrance to the Riverfront Park off Hubbard and 
Brady Street to better control vehicle access and protect pedestrians during events on the riverfront.   

•   Staff is looking at installing video cameras at corners of Trowbridge Street and Locust Street and Hubbard Street and Brady Street.  

•  Staff is working with the library for the removal of a mature tree whose root system has to be removed due to the underground infrastructure.  



 

Fund                 
ID Fund Name FY22 thru 

Nov-22
Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 TOTAL

202 Streets (Major) 1,573$          -$        -$              -$        16,994$       42,798$       124,133$        85,745$       271,243$        
203 Streets (Minor) 140,816$      2,020$    145,210$      3,975$    109,367$     106,022$     295,969$        226,736$     1,030,114$     
590 Sewer 96,614$        -$        -$              -$        37,905$       113,400$     249,943$        194,754$     692,617$        
591 Water 165,123$      -$        -$              -$        45,252$       94,993$       305,004$        232,620$     842,992$        

TOTAL 404,127$      2,020$    145,210$      3,975$    209,518$     357,213$     975,049$        739,855$     2,836,966$     

Payment History by Month

Project Budget Report  

Vendor Job Description
Agreement 

Amount    
2022

202           
Major 
Streets

203            
Local Streets

590            
Sewer

591          
Water

Change 
Orders

Amended 
Total (A)

Amount Paid 
to Date (B)

Balance 
Remaining                  

(A-B)
Abonmarche Design Engineering 278,000$        $               -    $      121,422  $          60,058  $        96,520  $                -   278,000$       278,000$        -$              

S&P: Bond Rating 13,500$          $               -    $          5,805  $            2,970  $          4,725  $                -   13,500$         13,500$          -$              
Dickenson Wright PLLC: Bond Counsel 58,750$          $         1,573  $          5,267  $          17,000  $        34,910  $                -   58,750$         58,750$          -$              

MFCI, LLC: Bond-Finacial Advisors 48,635$          $               -    $        19,950  $          12,750  $        15,935  $                -   48,635$         48,635$          -$              
Kaechele Publications: Bond Public Notice 4,940$            $               -    $                -    $            2,470  $          2,470  $                -   4,940$           4,940$            -$              
Treasury Filing Fees: Bond Filing 1,538$            $               -    $             538  $               400  $             600  $                -   1,538$           1,538$            -$              

Consumers Lighting 300,000$        $               -    $      300,000  $                  -    $                -    $                -   300,000$       66,752$          233,248$       
TBD Amenities 200,000$        $               -    $      200,000  $                  -    $                -    $                -   200,000$       -$               200,000$       

Other Expenses USPS, Orbis, EconoSign 3,804$            $               -    $          3,804  $                  -    $                -    $                -   3,804$           3,804$            -$              
Abonmarche Construction Engineering 530,800$        $       44,228  $      205,457  $        129,780  $      155,310  $                -   534,775$       162,912$        371,862$       
Milbocker Construction 6,944,419$     $     832,013  $   2,061,123  $     1,846,721  $   2,204,562  $         29,254 6,973,673$    2,198,135$     4,775,538$    

Project Totals 8,384,386$    877,814$     2,923,365$    2,072,149$     2,515,032$    29,254$         8,417,614$    2,836,966$     5,580,648$    

2023 DTSS: Expenditures



 
 

Project Budget Progress Report 
 

1. Invoices received/paid during the current month. 

 

2. Change orders received during the current month. 

N/A 

 

 

Date Vendor Inv# Inv $
05/31/23 Broken Arrow Downtown Dumpsters 1,350.00$          
06/14/23 Abonmarche 146601 74,200.95$        
06/25/23 Allegan County Easement 31.50$               
06/30/23 Milbocker 5 664,272.49$      



1 
 

   

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Allegan City Council 

FROM:  Jason Derry, Zoning Administrator 

DATE: July 18, 2023 

RE:   Tooker – Land Division – 03-51-200-004-00 

 

The City Council is set to review a land division within the City of Allegan.  

 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

 

Property Information 

The parcel addressed 925 River Street, also known as permanent parcel number 03-51-200-004-00 resides at the 

southwest corner of 118th Avenue and River Steet and comprises approximately 16.96 acres. It has further frontage on 

the vacated and unimproved Michigan Avenue right-of-way to the south. It is currently zoned R-2 Single-family 

Residential – Medium Density Zoning District and bordered to the south by like R-2 property, the east by Allegan 

Township’s R-2 Residential – Low Density District, the north by Allegan Township’s A Agricultural District, and the 

west by Allegan Township’s I-1 Industrial District. 

Request Information 

There is a request before the Board to divide 51-200-004-00 into a 13.78-acre piece (“Parcel A”) and 4.13-acre 

remainder. Please see the aerial photos, attached application, and survey for your reference.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject properties in relation to the City of Allegan 
(Allegan County Parcel Viewer 2.0, 2021) 

 

Subject properties in relation to each other 
(CONNECTExplorer Eagleview, 2023) 

 

Existing Parcel 
Proposed Resulting Parcels 



2 
 

The resulting parcels will be a 13.78-acre new parcel, labeled “Parcel A” on the survey and a 4.13-acre remainder. 

Parcel A ill retain 1,038.48 feet of frontage on 118th Avenue to the north and 984.53 feet on the vacated, unimproved 

Michigan Avenue to the south. Likewise, the remainder will retain 277 feet of frontage on 118th Avenue to the north, 

594.48 feet on River Street to the east, and 328.94 feet on the vacated, unimproved Michigan Avenue to the south. 

Despite the 200 in the parcel number, no other evidence exists to suggest that this parcel is platted. The proposed 

division is therefore a metes-and-bounds division regulated by the applicable sections of the Land Division Act of 1997. 

The Assessor’s data indicates that the property has not been divided since 1997, thereby having all four (4) division 

rights available to it (measured by the LDA of 1997 as three (3) new parcels + the remainder for a total of four (4) 

resulting parcels). This proposed division constitutes one (1) of those four (4) divisions rights, resulting in two (2) total 

parcels. The remainder of the parent parcel will therefore be able to create two (2) more additional parcels afterword. 

Meanwhile, the new proposed parcel (Parcel A) would, by default, be unable to divide for ten (10) years before gaining 

one (1) redivision right. 

However, since the remainder is listed on the survey as the smaller of the two pieces, the applicant has elected to convey 

the two (2) remaining division rights from the remainder parcel to the new parcel (Parcel A). Parcel A will therefore 

have the right to divide two (2) more times to result in a total of three (3) parcels. The remainder, meanwhile, will be 

unable to divide indefinitely. 

Like the current proposal, any and all future parcels will need to meet the R-2 District dimensional requirements (60 feet 

of frontage; 8,100 square feet of area if served by public water/sewer; 35,000 square feet if not). 

Section 5.03 of the Municipal Ordinance states that Council approval is required to complete this combination, subject 

to the limitations spelled out in Section 5.04. It is my opinion this combination complies with the requirements of 

Section 5.04, and therefore is qualified to come before you for approval. A copy of Sections 5.03 and 5.04 have been 

attached for your convenience.  

 

Conclusion 

I hope the information provided is helpful to you as you consider this request. If you have any questions or concerns, 

please do not hesitate to contact me and I will assist in any way that I am able. You may reach me by phone at either 

(616) 877-2000 Ext. 215 or by email at jderry@pcimi.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Jason Derry 

City of Allegan Zoning Administrator 

Professional Code Inspections of Michigan, Inc. 

 

 

 

mailto:jderry@pcimi.com
















1 
 

   

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Allegan City Council 

FROM:  Jason Derry, Zoning Administrator 

DATE: July 18, 2023 

RE:   Shanley – Minor Plat Amendment (Combination) – 03-51-100-061-00 & 03-51-190-027-00 

 

The City Council is set to review a minor plat amendment within the City of Allegan.  

 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

 

Property Information 

The properties in question are parcel numbers 03-51-100-061-00 and 03-51-190-027-00 (554 S Sherman Street). Both 

properties are owned by Lawrence Shanley. Parcel -100-061-00 comprises 0.34 acres, has no current frontage on any 

legally recognized street, and is currently vacant. Parcel -190-027-00 comprises 0.27 acres, fronts approximately 90 feet 

on S Sherman Street, and hosts an owner-occupied dwelling. Both parcels are zoned R-2 Single-family Residential – 

Medium Density Zoning District. 

Request Information 

There is a request before the Board to combine Parcels -03-51-100-061-00 and -190-027-00. Please see the aerial photos 

and attached application for your reference.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Subject properties in relation to the City of Allegan 
(Allegan County Parcel Viewer 2.0, 2021) 

 

Subject properties in relation to each other 
(CONNECTExplorer Eagleview, 2023) 

 

Existing Parcels 
Proposed Resulting Parcel 



2 
 

As all evidence suggests that Sunset Drive is not a legally established street, -100-061-00 is currently considered 

unbuildable. Therefore, as 554 Sherman Street fronts on Sherman Street, the resulting parcel will allow the previously 

landlocked -100-061-00 to be built upon. As the parcels are currently zoned R-2 Single-family Residential – Medium 

Density Zoning District, there is no maximum lot size requirement. Additionally, no road frontage is proposed to be 

decreased, nor is the overall acreage. 

Despite the differing parcel number information, both parcels appear to be part of the West Sunset Acres Plat (1953). 

Section 5.03 of the Municipal Ordinance states that Council approval is required to complete this combination, subject 

to the limitations spelled out in Section 5.04. It is my opinion this combination complies with the requirements of 

Section 5.04, and therefore is qualified to come before you for approval. A copy of Sections 5.03 and 5.04 have been 

attached for your convenience.  

 

Conclusion 

I hope the information provided is helpful to you as you consider this request. If you have any questions or concerns, 

please do not hesitate to contact me and I will assist in any way that I am able. You may reach me by phone at either 

(616) 877-2000 Ext. 215 or by email at jderry@pcimi.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Jason Derry 

City of Allegan Zoning Administrator 

Professional Code Inspections of Michigan, Inc. 

 

 

 

mailto:jderry@pcimi.com




City of Allegan 
269.673.5511 

231 Trowbridge Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:   July 24, 2023 
SUBJECT: FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Contract 
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that City Council approve the FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Contract in the amount 
of $6,250.   
 
Background:  
For the past several years, the City of Allegan, along with Allegan County and several other 
townships in Allegan County have partnered with Lakeshore Advantage to provide economic 
development services in our communities.  Through this work Lakeshore Advantage has been a 
resource and supporter of local businesses and committed to maintaining a robust business base in 
the larger West Michigan/Lakeshore Region.   
 
Regarding the City of Allegan specifically, Lakeshore Advantage has conducted several dozen 
business retention meeting, processed PA 198 Industrial Facility Tax Exemption Applications for 
Tantrick Brewing and Advanced Architectural Products and serve as a resource to city staff when 
looking at economic issues, meeting with existing businesses as well as site selection opportunities 
for new growth.  This relationship with Lakeshore Advantage has been fruitful as we continue to 
grow Allegan’s economic engine.   
 
The funding for this contract comes out the City Manager’s Budget under the Contractual Services 
Line Item.  
 
Attachment(s):  
Lakeshore Advantage Invoice 
Lakeshore Advantage Purchase Order 
FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeshore Advantage
201 W. Washington Ave Loft 410
Zeeland, MI  49464 US
katie.degroff@lakeshoreadvantage.com

Invoice

BILL TO

Joel Dye
City of Allegan
112 Locust St
Allegan, MI  49010
United States

INVOICE # DATE TOTAL DUE DUE DATE TERMS ENCLOSED

00559 07/12/2023 $6,260.00 08/11/2023 Net 30

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Annual Investment Financial Contribution 1 6,250.00 6,250.00

Misc ACH Fee 1 10.00 10.00

Please dismiss the ACH Fee if cutting a check! BALANCE DUE $6,260.00



Bidder Name Bid Amount

Date

Date

CM/Council Approval:

Finance Approval:

Date

Summary of All Bids Received

Notes:

Requested By:

Contract/Job #:

6,250.00Total:

6,250.006,250.00101-172-81800Annual Financial Contribution1

AmountUnit PriceGL NumberDescriptionQty.

Req. Description: FY2024 Annual Contract

ZEELAND, MI  49464
LOFT 410

201 WEST WASHINGTON AVEAddress

LAKESHORE ADVANTAGE CORPORATION
Preferred Vendor 547511JDyeRequested By

Requested Date

101Department

07/17/2023

24-0720Purchase Requisition No

Purchase Requisition
07/17/2023

City of Allegan

231 Trowbridge Street

Allegan, MI 49010

(269) 673-5511

(269) 686-5139



AGREEMENT FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

LAKESHORE ADVANTAGE CORPORATION 
 

This Agreement is entered into on Wednesday, July 01, 2023, by and between City 
of Allegan, located at 231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan, MI 49010 (“Community Partner”) and 
Lakeshore Advantage Corporation located at 201 W. Washington Avenue, Loft 410, Zeeland, 
Michigan 49464, (“Lakeshore Advantage”). 
 
 The Community Partner requests certain economic development services, and Lakeshore 
Advantage desires to provide such services and is qualified to perform such services.   
 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the Community 
Partner and Lakeshore Advantage agree as follows: 
 
1. Services.  Lakeshore Advantage and its employees will perform certain economic 

development services for the Community Partner, as designated in the Statement of Work, 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as “Exhibit A” (“Services”).  Lakeshore 
Advantage agrees to consider and discuss the Services that may be needed by the 
community; provided, however, that the terms and conditions under which any such 
Services are provided by Lakeshore Advantage will remain at the exclusive discretion and 
control of Lakeshore Advantage. 
 

2. Payment.  The Community Partner will pay Lakeshore Advantage for its Services on an 
annual basis in a single payment, at the rate identified in the schedule that is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as “Exhibit B”.  The Community Partner will make payments 
timely after the execution of this Agreement and receipt of an invoice.  
 

3. Term.  The term of this Agreement will be for a period of one year, commencing July 1, 
2023, and continuing until June 30, 2024, unless otherwise terminated as provided for in 
this Agreement. 
 

4. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, or any of the Services 
performed hereunder, with or without cause, at any time, upon providing the other party 
with thirty (30) days prior written notice.  Any notice will be deemed given when personally 
delivered or by mailing such notice, postage prepaid, to the other party at the address set forth 
above.  In the event of an early termination of this Agreement, Lakeshore Advantage will 
be paid the annual fee referenced in Exhibit B hereto on a pro-rated basis to the effective 
date of the termination.  If such termination occurs after the Community Partner has paid 
Lakeshore Advantage, Lakeshore Advantage will reimburse the Community Partner the 
pro-rated amount within sixty (60) days of termination. 
 

5. Independent Contractor.  It is expressly understood and agreed that Lakeshore 
Advantage is an independent contractor.  The employees, servants and agents of Lakeshore 
Advantage will in no way be deemed to be and will not hold themselves out as the 
employees, servants or agents of the Community Partner.  Lakeshore Advantage’s 



employees, servants and agents will not be entitled to any fringe benefits of the Community 
Partner such as, but limited to, health and accident insurance, life insurance, paid vacation 
leave, paid sick leave or longevity.  Lakeshore Advantage will be responsible for 
withholding and payment of all applicable taxes, including, but not limited to, income and 
Social Security taxes to the proper Federal, State and local governments.  Lakeshore 
Advantage will carry workers’ compensation and unemployment compensation coverage 
for its employees, as required by law.  It is also expressly agreed that Lakeshore Advantage 
will not be covered by or participate in any benefits extended to Community Partner’s 
employees through the Community Partner’s pension plans, deferred compensation plans 
or personnel policies and procedures. 
 

6. Report of Services.  Lakeshore Advantage will report to the Board of Trustees or Directors 
of the Community Partner as requested and will otherwise be available to meet with and 
provide reasonable information relating to the Services to the Community Partner.   

 
7. Compliance with Law.  Lakeshore Advantage will render the Services in complete 

compliance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations.  Lakeshore Advantage will adhere to all Federal, State and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations prohibiting discrimination with regard to persons seeking 
and/or receiving Services.  Lakeshore Advantage will not discriminate against a person to 
be served or an employee or an employee or applicant for employment, because of race, 
color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, health, weight, marital status, political 
affiliation or beliefs, or citizenship as required by law.  Lakeshore Advantage’s breach of 
the covenant will be regarded as a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
8. Modification and Execution.  This Agreement may only be modified by a written 

agreement signed by the authorized representatives of the Community Partner and 
Lakeshore Advantage. This Agreement may be executed by the Community Partner and 
Lakeshore Advantage in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and 
delivered will be an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same 
Agreement.  Electronic signatures will be considered genuine and enforceable.  The 
persons signing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto certify that they are duly 
authorized to sign on behalf of the parties and that this Agreement has been authorized by 
the appropriate parties. 
 

9. Assignment.  Lakeshore Advantage may not subcontract or otherwise assign its duties and 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Community 
Partner, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld.  
 

10. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement concerning 
the Services and, as of the effective date hereof, supersedes any and all prior agreements 
between the parties, if any.  Community Partner and Lakeshore Advantage acknowledge 
that they have read this agreement and had an opportunity to consult with legal counsel and 
are freely entering into this Agreement.  If any provision of the Agreement is held to be 
invalid, the remainder of the Agreement will not be affected thereby except where the 



invalidity of the provision will result in the illegality and/or unenforceability of this 
Agreement. 
 

11. Michigan Law.  This Agreement is governed by and will be interpreted and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan, without regard to conflict of law 
principles.   

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first above written. 
 
 
LAKESHORE ADVANTAGE CORPORATION  
 
 
 
BY:      ___________________________________  DATE:  ______________________ 
            

Jennifer Owens 
ITS:     President 
 
 
City of Allegan 
 
 
 
BY:                DATE: _______________________ 
           
 Joel Dye 
ITS:   City Manager 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
1. RETENTION & EXPANSION ACTIVITIES: 
 

Conduct primary business retention visits to existing primary employers in Allegan 
County. A primary employer exports goods and/or services outside of our region.   
 
Provide manufacturers with information on Federal, State and local business 
assistance/incentive programs (including financing, tax abatements, worker training and 
technical assistance); assist companies with groundbreakings and open houses. 
 
Assist local units of government in obtaining Federal and State grants & loans to help 
finance public infrastructure improvements required for major private sector investments. 

 
Provide information on available industrial sites, land & buildings to leads and prospects. 
 

2. SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: 
 

Provide information on other resources for primary small business start-ups (including 
preparing a business plan, requesting a bank loan, obtaining licenses and permits and 
conducting market research). 
 
Provide referrals to small business support and training sessions held by the MI-SBDC 
Network. 
 

3. BUSINESS ATTRACTION ACTIVITIES: 
 
Offer prospective sites in Ottawa and Allegan Counties in response to applicable MEDC 
Site Searches. 
 
Promote Ottawa and Allegan Counties to industrial leads and prospects that are compatible 
with the existing industrial base, contribute to the diversification of the economy and/or 
are engaged in high-tech activities.  
 
Host prospect visits. 

 
4.  OTHER ACTIVITIES: 
 

Provide other economic development services that correspond with Lakeshore 
Advantage’s three core service areas. 
 

• Maintaining a robust primary business base. 
• Tackling talent challenges. 
• Looking forward to ensuring long term economic health. 



EXHIBIT B 
SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL COMPENSATION 

 
 
 
Year             Amount  
 
FY2024        $   6,250 
 

 
 
                                                                                                           
 
 



City of Allegan 
City Manager’s Office 

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: N/A 
DATE:   July 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Lease Agreement with Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC.   
  
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign a three-year lease 
agreement with Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC to lease 231 Trowbridge Street, Unit 2, 
Allegan, MI 49010, which is a 1,525 square foot office space at the Allegan City Hall from August 
1, 2023 to July 31, 2026. 
 
Background:  
In 2020, the City of Allegan entered a three-year lease with Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC 
(the lessee) to lease 231 Trowbridge Street, Unit 2, Allegan, MI 49010, which is a 1,525 square 
foot office space at the Allegan City Hall.  Due to the impacts of Covid-19, that three-year lease 
had a built-in escalator where each year, the lessee paid more than the year before; however, the 
average monthly cost over the three years equaled a lease payment of $1,270 a month.  This lease 
is set to expire next month.   
 
Staff have entered negotiations to secure another three-year lease from the lessee. We have come 
to an agreement that the new lease rate should be $1,400 a month.  There are no other changes to 
the lease agreement. Attached is the new lease agreement for the council’s review.  
 
 
Attachment(s):  
Lease Agreement between the City of Allegan and Saunders Chiropractic 






















	7/24/2023 Agenda
	5A – Approval of the Study Session Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting.
	5B – Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting.
	10A – Request from Wings of Hope.
	11A.1 – Downtown Development Authority July Meeting – Teresa Galloway
	11A.2 - Public Spaces Commission July Meeting - Bill Morgan
	11A.3 – Zoning Board of Appeals July 13th Meeting – Joel Dye
	11B.1 – Request to approve Accounts Payable and Payroll.
	11C.1 – Request to declare the emergency siren located at 300 Monroe Street as surplus and discuss emergency siren coverage in the City of Allegan.
	11E.1 – Request to authorize a transfer of FY2019 airport funds to the Coleman A. Young Airport in Detroit, Michigan.
	11E.2 – Request to authorize a purchase order for Riverworks Construction for repairs to the Riverfront Boardwalk in the amount of $87,610.00 and reject the low bid of TJM Services for bid inaccuracies.
	11F.1 – Request to accept the June 2023 Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape Project Progress Report.
	11F.2 – Request to approve the proposed land division of Parcel# 03-51-200-004-00, located at 925 River Street.
	11F.3 – Request to approve the proposed plat amendment of Parcel# 03-51-100-061-00 and -190-027-00.
	11F.4 – Request to approve the FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Contract.
	11F.5 - Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC Lease Agreement
	12A – Appointment of Sara Ramaker to the Historic District Commission with a term set to expire on December 31, 2026
	12B – Appointment of Marjori Cantwell to the Historic District Commission with a term set to expire on December 31, 2026

	TrfSponsorName: City of Allegan, Michigan
	TrfAirport: Padgham Field
	TrfLOCID: 35D
	Type1: Nonprimary
	FY1: 19
	Amt1: 104000
	Type2: 
	FY2: 
	Amt2: 
	Type3: 
	FY3: 
	Amt3: 
	Type4: 
	FY4: 
	Amt4: 
	Total: 104000
	RcvAirport: Coleman A. Young Municipal 
	RcvLOCID: DET
	RcvSponsor: City of Detroit
	DateExp: 9/23/2023
	FAAname: Alissa VanHoof, P.E.
	FAAtitle: Manager, Airport Planning and Development Section 
	FAAdate: 06/12/2023
	ExeDay: 
	ExeMonth: 
	ExeYr: 
	CertSponsor: City of Allegan, Michigan
	CertAuthName: 
	CertAuthTitle: 
	AttyName: 
	State: 
	CityState: 
	SignDOM: 
	SignMo: 
	SignYr: 
	submitEmail: 


